



# **THE CONSTITUTION (AS AMENDED)**

**OF**

**THE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION**

**FEDERAL COLLEGE OF EDUCATION (TECHNICAL),**

**AKOKA YABA,**

**LAGOS**

**FORMERLY**

**NATIONAL TECHNICAL TEACHERS**

**TRAINING COLLEGE (NTTTC)**

**NATIONAL TECHNICAL TEACHERS COLLEGE**

**(NTTC)**

**2022 AS REVIEWED**

## CONTENT

<b>Preamble</b>		<b>1</b>
<b>ARTICLE 1</b>		<b>2</b>
Section 1	The Name	2
Section 2	Association's Identity	2
Section 3	Supremacy of the Constitution	2
Section 4	Official Address	2
Section 5	States\Branches\Chapters	2-3
<b>ARTICLE 2</b>		<b>4</b>
Section 1	Aim & Objectives	4 -5
<b>ARTICLE 3</b>		
Section 1	Membership	6
Section 2	Qualification For membership	6
Section 3	Rights of Members	7
Section 4	Obligation of Members	7
<b>ARTICLE 4</b>		
Section 1	National Executive Officers	8
Section 2	National Executive Council	9
Section 3	Powers of the national Executive Council	10
Section 4	Functions of the National Executive Council Members	11-14
<b>ARTICLE 5</b>		
<b>BOARD OF TRUSTEES</b>		
Section 1	Composition	15
Section 2	Appointment	15
Section 3	Functions	15
Section 4	Grand Patron, Patrons & Patronesses	16
Section 5	Appointment of Grand Patron, Patrons & Patronesses	16
<b>ARTICLE 6</b>		
Section 1	Electoral System	17-18
Section 2	Qualifications of Electoral Committee Members	18
<b>ARTICLE 7</b>		
Section 1	Meeting	19
<b>ARTICLE 8</b>		
Section 1	Finance	20-21
<b>ARTICLE 9</b>		
Section 1	Oath of Office	22
<b>ARTICLE 10</b>		
Section 1	Adoption and Amendment of the Constitution	23

## **PREAMBLE**

We, the old students of Federal College of Education (Technical) Akoka, Yaba, Lagos (Formerly National Technical Teachers Training College and National Technical Teachers College) having firmly and solemnly resolved to meet as one indivisible body under God, dedicated to the promotion and development of our great College, maintaining good relationship among members (graduates of the institution), and to provide a Constitution for the purpose of promoting the good governance and welfare of members and students on the principles of freedom, equality and justice, and for the purpose of consolidating the unity among our members; the Association is Non-Political and Non-Religious: do hereby make, enact and give to ourselves this Constitution in accordance to the provision herein.

## **ARTICLE 1**

### **SECTION 1**

#### **Name**

The Association shall be called: **"The Alumni Association, Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, Yaba, Lagos."**

### **SECTION 2**

#### **The Motto**

The motto of the Association shall be Justice, Equality and Unity.

### **SECTION 3**

#### **Supremacy of the Constitution**

##### **S/s (1)**

This Constitution is supreme and its provisions shall be binding on the members of the Alumni Association of Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, Yaba, Lagos.

##### **S/s (2)**

The Alumni Association, Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, Yaba, Lagos, shall not be governed, or shall any person or group of persons take control of the Association or any part thereof, except in accordance with the provisions of this Constitution.

##### **S/s (3)**

If any other decision(s) is/are inconsistent with the provisions of this Constitution, this Constitution shall prevail and other decision(s) shall be void.

##### **S/s (4)**

Members of the Alumni Association of Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, Yaba, Lagos, shall be bound by all disciplinary actions imposed on them under this Constitution.

## **SECTION 4**

### **OFFICIAL ADDRESS**

#### **S/S (1)**

The Association shall have its National Secretariat situated at the Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, Yaba, Lagos Nigeria.

#### **S/S (2)**

Postal Address: P. O. Box 269, Yaba, Lagos, Nigeria.

## **SECTION 5**

### **STATES/BRANCHES/CHAPTERS**

#### **S/s (1)**

The Association shall have branches in different parts of the country as well as other country(ies) of the world with the provisions of this constitution and the local laws of the land.

**S/s (2)**

- (a). Every Branch shall be registered and approved by the National Executive Council.
- (b). Every Branch of this Association shall report to, and be responsible to the parent body.
- (c). Each Branch of this Association shall organize its own activities in conformity with the provisions of this Constitution.
- (d). The name must indicate clearly that it is a branch of the Alumni Association of Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, Yaba, Lagos. (e.g. the Alumni Association, Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, Enugu Branch).
- (e). Every branch/chapter shall elect its own Executive Officers similar to that of the parent body, except that there shall be the post of Chairman & Vice-Chairman in place of President & Vice-President.
- (f). It shall be mandatory for every Branch/Chapter to conduct regular meetings
- (g). Any branch of this Association shall be self-supporting.
- (h). Branches/Chapters Check-off dues, as prescribed by the National Executive Council should be paid not later than six (6) months of the fiscal year.
- (i). To qualify to form a branch, there shall be a minimum of 10 full financial members, who shall be registered with the parent body.
- (j). Where there is an insufficient number of persons to establish a branch/chapter, towns/cities, states, or countries shall merge to form a branch/chapter.
- (k) Any member of a branch or chapter who has been suspended or expelled is automatically not qualified to be a member of another Branch/Chapter unless and until he/she has been pardoned by the Branch/Chapter that sanctioned him/her, or he/she had served out the terms of suspension.
- (l) Any Branch/Chapter in default of the provisions of this section is deemed to stand suspended, while such Branch's/Chapter's executives shall be queried and sanctioned by the National Secretariat.

## **ARTICLE 2**

### **SECTION 1 AIMS AND OBJECTIVES**

S/s1

To provide a link between the Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, Yaba, Lagos, and her graduates, partners and the public in general.

S/s2

To assist the Institution in whatever desirable way possible in its development and to strive to maintain its reputable tradition.

S/s3

To promote mutual understanding, co-operation, and fraternal relationship among the graduates of the Institution.

S/s4

To arrange seminars, workshops, conferences, up-skilling, exhibitions, current innovations for technological development. With subsequent discussions and publications on matters relating to Business, Vocational and Technical Education.

S/s5

To confer, consult, maintain contact and co-operate with public and private partners, established in Nigeria or elsewhere, having objectives in whole or in part similar to those of the Association.

S/s6

To provide any necessary assistance in improving students' welfare in the Institution.

S/s7

To raise funds voluntarily, receive donations, gifts, grants from members and the general public, in the financing of the above objectives.

S/s8

To provide advice to authorities of the Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, on such spheres of academic/professional activities demanding specialist advice.

S/s9

To carry out the various aims, and objectives through the establishment of standing Committees when necessary.

Such standing Committees shall include the following:

1. Special purpose/General purpose
2. Education and Research
3. Publications
4. Finance
5. Welfare
6. Properties
7. Ad-hoc Committee

S/s (10)

To do such other things which the Association might consider to be in the interest of the Institution.

**ARTICLE 3**  
**SECTION 1**

**MEMBERSHIP**

**S/s (1)**

Membership of the Association shall be automatic for every graduate of the Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, Lagos, irrespective of the nature of the course(s) studied as long as it is not less than one academic year and was conferred with an academic certificate.

**S/s (2)**

**Qualifications for Membership:**

- a) All graduates of the Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, shall be members of the Association.
- b). Honorary Membership Award may be conferred on any deserving individual as deemed fit by the National Executive Council
- c). Every member of the Association shall pay an annual subscription/due, as well as an induction fee for the new graduands and prospective Honorary Members.
- d). The annual subscription shall be fixed by the National Executive Council and may be reviewed periodically by the National Executive Council.
- e). Non-payment of the registration fee, induction fee and other membership dues shall disqualify a person from becoming a full financial member.

**SECTION 3**

**RIGHTS OF MEMBERS**

**S/s(1)**

The Rights of members shall be equal and based on all provisions of this constitution.

**S/s(2)**

All members are entitled to attend general/emergency meeting called by the executive of the association.

**S/s(3)**

Every full financial member of the association shall be entitled to a membership identification card.

**S/s(4)** A member shall lose his/her full financial membership if he/she fails to pay the annual subscription. Payments of outstanding dues shall restore the membership status immediately



## **SECTION 4**

### **OBLIGATION OF MEMBERS**

S/s1

Members are mandated to respect the principles and provisions of this Constitution.

S/s2

As a matter of obligations, all members shall endeavor to attend all meetings except National Executives Meetings and all other forms of Executive meetings according to the provisions of this Constitution.

S/s3

All members shall pay their annual subscription and all other dues.

S/s (4)

Members shall treat each other with respect and cordiality at all times.

S/s (5)

National Executive Officers and all members shall bear true allegiance to this Association and disassociate themselves from any similar or parallel unit or association within the college.

## **ARTICLE 4**

### **SECTION 1**

#### **National Executive Officers**

S/s(1)

The fiscal year of the association shall start from 1st January to 31st December.

S/s2

Election of officers of the Association shall be at the Annual General Meeting of the Association, which shall take place in the month of October of the 4<sup>th</sup> year of the administration, at a date determined by the National Executive Council, or at an Extra-ordinary General Meeting. All members shall be eligible to vote, and be voted for provided they are full financial members, and voting shall be by secret ballot.

S/s3

Every officer shall hold office for a period of four (4) years of single term without eligibility of he/she to stand for a second term in office and no officer shall hold a particular position for more than two terms.

S/s (4)

The National officers of the Association shall include:

- a. National President
- b. National Vice President I
- c. National Vice President II
- d. National General Secretary
- e. National Assistant General Secretary
- f. National Treasurer
- g. National Financial Secretary
- h. National Publicity Secretary
- i. National Social Secretary
- j. National Internal Auditor
- k. National Welfare Secretary
- l. National Legal Adviser

S/s5

#### **Standing Committee:**

Standing Committees shall be permanent committees whose main functions shall be the furtherance of the aims and objectives of the Association, as may be decided from time-to-time by the National Executive Council.

S/s6

Each Committee shall comprise at least five members and shall be headed by a Chairman, who may be a member of the National Executive Council or any other member as approved by the National Executive Council.

S/s7

The Standing Committees shall be:

- a. Special/General Purpose Committee
- b. Education and Research Committee
- c. Finance Committee
- d. Publications Committee
- e. Properties Committee
- f. Welfare Committee
- g. Special Advisory Committee to the President (Which shall consist of Past Presidents who served meritoriously and not impeached)

S/s8

The tenure of members of each Standing Committee shall be determined by the National Executive Council of the Association.

S/s 9

Other Committees:

Committees may be specified, by the body setting up the particular committee.

S/s 10

All Committees shall operate within the terms of reference as given by the National Executive Council.

## **SECTION 2**

### **National Executive Council**

S/s (1)

The National Executive Council shall comprise of all officers elected at an Annual General Meeting or at an Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Association.

S/s (2)

The National Executive Council shall hold office for a term of four (4) years without prejudice to Article 4. S/s (2) hereof.

S/s3

Any office may become vacant by resignation, or death or by removal of the incumbent by 2/3 of full financial members, in such financial year, passing a resolution of a "vote of no confidence", on such officer(s) to that effect at an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Association called for that purpose or at the Annual General Meeting.

S/s4  
A new officer shall be elected to fill the vacant position through a by-election within 90 days of the vacant position.

S/s5  
According to S/s 3 above, the new officer shall serve the unexpired period of the former, after which period he/she will resign with all other officers and may stand for fresh election at the next Annual General Meeting/Election.

### **SECTION 3**

#### **Powers of the National Executive Council**

The National Executive Council shall have the powers to administer the affairs of the Association to the best of its judgment and ability and shall inter-alia:

S/s (1)  
Manage the finances and exercise control over the finances of the Association in such a manner, as it considers prudent.

S/s (2)  
Appoint representatives to attend meetings of other organizations.

S/s (3)  
Express in such manner as it deems fit, the views of the Association upon any matter of public interest and shall have the responsibility of reporting to members of the Association on such issues.

S/s (4)  
Convene meetings of the Association and the National Executive Council, as it deems fit, subject to the provisions of this Constitution.

S/s (5)  
Make all necessary arrangements for the Annual General Meeting.

S/s (6)  
Present an annual budget at the Annual General Meeting to the members of the association for ratification and approval.

S/s (7)  
National Executive Council, in the fourth year of their administration, shall hand over to the newly elected executives between 1<sup>st</sup> of November to 31<sup>st</sup> December.

## **SECTION 4**

### **Functions of the National Executive Council Members**

#### **S/s (1)**

##### **The National President:**

The National President shall be the Presiding officer of the Association. He shall:

- a. Preside over all meetings of the Association, including the Annual General Meeting and also the National Executive Council meetings.
- b. Cause to be summoned, all meetings including the Annual General Meeting and the National Executive Council meetings.
- c. Present the Annual Report of the Association at the Annual General Meeting, and coordinate the activities of all other officers of the National Executive Council
- d. Conduct the affairs of all meetings in accordance with this Constitution and the approved standing rules.
- e. Shall be a category A signatory to the Association's bank account.
- f. Shall coordinate the complete handover of his/her administration to the incoming administration during the transition period of 1st November to 31st December.

#### **S/s (2)**

##### **The Vice President 1:**

- a. The Vice President 1 shall assist the President in the performance of his/her duties.
- b. He/She shall also perform these duties in the absence of the President.
- c. Shall perform other duty(ies) assigned to him/her by the President of the National Executive Council.
- d. Shall be a Category A Signatory member to the Association's bank account.

S/s (3)

**The Vice President II:**

- a. The Vice President II shall assist Vice President I in the performance of his/her duties.
- b. In the absence of the President and the Vice President I, he/she shall preside over the Association's meeting(s).
- c. Shall perform any other duty(ies) as may be assigned by the President or the National Executive Council.

S/s (4)

**National General Secretary:**

- a. Summons, on the instructions of the President, all meetings, and the Annual General Meeting.
- b. Records and keeps minutes of all meetings.
- c. Manages the National Secretariat of the Association.
- d. Shall be a Category B signatory to the Association's bank account.
- e. Shall present the National secretariat report at the Annual General Meeting
- f. Shall maintain an Imprest Account. The maximum amount shall be determined by the National Executive Council.

S/s (5)

**National Assistant General Secretary:**

- a. The Assistant General Secretary shall assist the General Secretary in the performance of all secretarial duties and shall at the request of the General Secretary or in his/her absence act in his/her place.
- b. Shall perform any other duty(ies) as may be assigned by the President or the National Executive Council.

S/s (6)

**National Treasurer:**

- a. Shall receive and record all money(s) collected from the National financial secretary.
- b. Shall pay the Association's money(s) to the Association's bankers within three (3) working days of receiving such monies.
- c. Shall prepare the National Annual Account of the Association for presentation at the Annual General Meeting, after being duly audited.
- d. Shall be a category B signatory to the Association's bank account.
- e. Shall maintain an Imprest Account, the maximum amount shall be determined by the National Executive Council.

S/s (7)

**National Financial Secretary:**

- a. Receives, records, and pays to the Treasurer of the Association, all monies collected for the Association from whatever source.
- b. Records all expenditures of the Association.
- c. Carries out any decision, or the directives of the National Executive Council on all matters relating to the finance or budget proposals of the Association.

S/s (8)

**National Publicity Secretary:**

- a. Shall ensure that all members of the Association are duly informed of every activity of the Association.
- b. Shall see that due and sufficient publicity is given to all the activities of the association.
- c. Shall ensure that all members of the Association are duly informed of every activity of the Association
- d. Shall issue Press releases on the approval of the National Executive Council or the President in emergency cases, and such releases must reflect the views of the Association.

S/s (9)

**National Social Secretary:**

- a. Shall manage all social activities of the Association and in that connection may form ad-hoc committees
- b. Shall perform other duties that may be assigned to him/her by the National Executive Council from time to time.

S/s (10)

**National Internal Auditor:**

- a. Shall ensure that proper books of accounts are kept by the Association and reports bi-annually to the Association including the Annual General Meeting.
- b. Shall conduct economic and compliance audit to confirm the existence and effective use of internal controls.
- c. Shall perform any other duties as may be assigned by the National Executive Council.

S/s (11)

**The National Welfare Secretary**

- a. Shall advise the National Executive Council on the welfare of members.
- b. Shall devise means of providing support to members in need.
- c. Shall help to organize welfare packages during meetings inclusive of Annual General Meeting.
- d. Shall maintain a diary of social events of members.

S/s (12)

**The National Sports Secretary**

- a) Shall coordinate all sporting activities of the association.
- b) Shall perform any other duties as may be assigned by the National Executive Council.

S/s (13)

**The National Legal Adviser**

- a. Shall be a lawyer of not less than 10 years post-call.
- b. Shall advise the association on all legal matters
- c. Shall conduct all litigations, prosecute, and defends actions on behalf of the association including its organs and officials in so far as the subject of litigation affects the interest of the association.
- d. Shall interpret the Laws, Regulations, and Constitution of the Association in the event of any ambiguities.
- e. Shall perform any other duties as may be assigned by the National Executive Council.



## **ARTICLE 5**

### **SECTION 1 BOARD OF TRUSTEES**

S/s(1)

#### **COMPOSITION**

The Board of Trustee shall comprise of seventeen(17) members which shall be two (2) representatives from each geo-political zones of Nigeria which are;  
South-West, South-South, South-East, North-West, North-East, and North-Central and three (3) representatives from the diaspora with the Chairman and the Secretary.

### **SECTION 2 APPOINTMENT**

S/s (1)

Prospective members shall be nominated by full financial members of the Association to The National Executive Council for ratification and approval for appointment.

S/s (2)

Names of Members of the BOT shall be forwarded to Corporate Affairs Commission or any other body established for that purpose.

S/s (3)

A trustee shall hold office for a period of ten (10) years. But shall cease to hold office if he/she:

- a. Resigns from office.
- b. becomes medically unfit.
- c. is officially declared bankrupt.
- d. is convicted of any criminal offense by a court of competent jurisdiction.
- e. is recommended for removal from office by a simple majority vote of full financial members present at the general assembly.

S/s (4)

Upon a vacancy occurring in the number of trustees, another eligible member of the association shall be appointed to fill the vacancy in respect to S/s (1)

### **SECTION 3 FUNCTIONS OF THE TRUSTEES**

S/s (1)

All assets of the Association shall be vested on the trustees with powers to deal with same as the Annual General Meeting shall from to time direct.

S/s (2)

The board of trustees shall have the power to approve the raising of loans by the National Executive Council in furtherance of the activities of the Association.

S/s (3)

The trustees shall have the power to acquire and dispose of properties, receive gifts/donations on behalf of the Association, and report such actions to the General Assembly, in case the National Executive Council is suspended.

S/s (4)

At any time in the life of this Association, if it becomes impracticable or impossible for the General Assembly to meet for the purpose of carrying out the constitutional duties under this constitution, it shall be the responsibility of the trustee to undertake the running of the association for a maximum period of three(3) months within which an electoral committee shall be constituted for the purpose of putting in place a new National Executive Council for the Association.

S/s (5)

The maximum period of three(3) months shall be renewable for another three(3) months on each occasion by the Board of Trustees themselves, provided that the period for which the trustees are to directly run the Association before the Electoral Committee is constituted shall not be more than one calendar year.

S/s (6)

There shall be a minimum of two(2) Board of Trustees Meetings Annually and shall be summoned by the Secretary upon the authorization of the Chairman.

## **SECTION 4**

### **GRAND PATRON, PATRONS AND PATRONESSES**

S/s (1)

The Association shall have a minimum of six (6) Patrons and six (6) Patronesses as well as one (1) Grand Patron.

S/s (2)

A Grand Patron shall be a person who among other things has an interest in the affairs and welfare of the Association, willing and capable of assisting the Association in the execution of its goals.

## **SECTION 5**

### **APPOINTMENT**

S/s1

The appointment of Patrons, Patronesses, and Grand Patron shall be approved by a simple majority of The National Executive Council, and such appointees shall be eligible to be admitted as Honorary Members of the Association

## **ARTICLE 6**

### **SECTION 1**

#### **ELECTORAL SYSTEM**

S/s (1)

There shall be an Electoral Committee of Five(5) members to administer Electoral rules and guidelines, for the conduct of elections. The Committee shall be headed by a Chairman and four(4) other officers who shall be appointed by the National Executive Council. The Chairman shall preside over the affairs of the Committee.

S/s (2)

Members of the Electoral Committee shall be appointed by the National Executive Council, at least three weeks (21days) to the Annual General Meeting or an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting to which the election will be held. The Electoral Committee shall be responsible for the conduct of the election.

S/s (3)

The National Executive Council shall first publish names of nominees on all media sources available to the Association before official appointment by NEC.

S/s (4)

Any Alumni member who has objections to any of the Electoral nominees can do so within two (2) days before their official appointments through any available channel of communication used by the Association.

S/s (5)

Nomination Forms shall be obtained from the Electoral Committee after the payment of the nomination fee as prescribed by the Electoral Committee.

S/s (6)

Voting shall be by secret ballot, physically and/or by electronic and each full financial member shall be entitled to only one vote.

S/s (7)

The Electoral Committee shall be independent of the National Executive Council in the performance of their electoral duties. They shall have powers to issue guidelines.

**S/s (8)**

The Electoral officials shall have no voting right.

**S/s (9)**

In case of a tie, the voting for the particular officer shall be repeated until a winner emerges.

**S/s (10)**

The Electoral Committee shall have the right to determine the commencement and end of voting exercise.

## **SECTION 2**

### **Qualifications of Electoral Committee Members**

**S/s (1)**

The Chairman of the Electoral Committee shall be a member of the Association for a minimum of ten (10) years.

**S/s (2)**

Other members of the Electoral Committee shall be members of the Association for at least five (5) years.

**ARTICLE 7**  
**SECTION 1**

**MEETINGS**

**S/s (1)**

The Annual General Meeting shall be held on such a day in the month of October of the election year, as may be determined by the Executive Council, provided the Executive Council postpones the holding of the Annual General Meeting in the event of some unforeseen circumstances that make it impracticable to hold the Annual General Meeting.

**S/s (2)**

Notice of the Annual General Meeting shall be by any or all the following procedures;

- a. By advertisement in at least one national newspaper with a minimum of twenty-one days interval.
- b. Electronically Mailed letters to members with a minimum of thirty days intervals.
- c. Through handbills and/or posters.
- d. Electronic /Social media advertisements and announcements.

**S/s (3)**

The Executive Council shall meet when due, provided at least, seven days' notice is given, except in emergency cases.

**S/s (4)**

Any one-third of the members of the Executive Council including the President or Vice-President and General Secretary or Assistant General Secretary shall form a quorum for the Executive Council Meeting.

**S/s (5)**

The Annual General Meeting shall be held once in a year and the quorum of the meeting shall be 1/3 of full financial members of the Association both physically and electronically, including either the President or Vice-President and General Secretary or Assistant General Secretary as provided in section 4

**S/s (6)**

One-third (1/3) of full financial members, shall form a quorum at any General Meeting of the Association including the Annual General Meeting. However, in any event, that this number is not reached, the meeting may still hold provided the President considers it necessary to hold the meeting and the issues to be discussed are very important to the Association and the College, but excluding amendment of the constitution or election of officers.

**S/s (7)**

In any General Meeting, including Annual General Meeting, all full financial members shall be entitled to vote and be voted for.

**S/s (8)**

A full financial member is a member that has paid in full the annual due for the year in question and without any outstanding fees.

## **ARTICLE 8**

### **SECTION 1 FINANCE**

S/s(1)

The finance of the Association shall be managed by the Executive Council.

S/s(2)

All members shall pay a membership fee as may be determined by the National Executive Council from time to time as in Article 3, Sub section 2c

S/s (3)

The annual subscription of such amount to be determined by the National Executive Council shall be paid by all members.

S/s (4)

Each member may be called upon to pay a special levy in aid of project(s) Embarked upon by the Association.

S/s (5)

Members may give voluntary donations in cash or kind to the Association, and such donations may also be received from the public through organized activities decided by the Executive Council.

S/s (6)

All money(ies) belonging to the Association shall be kept in its name with such bankers, as the Executive Council may appoint.

S/s (7)

No expenditure of money shall be incurred for any purpose unless such expenditure has been approved generally or specifically at the Annual General Meeting

S/s (8)

The National General Secretary and National Treasurer shall maintain a monthly imprest of such amount as may be determined by the National Executive Council from time to time.

S/s (9)

There shall be two (2) Categories of Signatories, Category A and Category B.

S/s (10)

The President and the 1<sup>st</sup> Vice-President are categorized under A. While the National General Secretary and the National Treasurer are categorized under B. The bank mandate shall be; any of Category A and any of Category B.

S/s (11)

The 1<sup>st</sup> Vice-President shall perform the duties of Category A signatory with The President's approval unless the President is either impeached or incapable.

S/s (12)

All payments shall be evidenced by vouchers, invoices, bills, and receipts.

**ARTICLE 9**

**OATH OF OFFICE  
SECTION 1**

All members of the Executive Council shall swear to an Oath of Office in S/s (2) of this section to be administered by a competent lawyer of the Federal Republic of Nigeria

**S/s (2) OATH OF OFFICE**

I .....do solemnly

swear that I will be faithful and bear true allegiance to the Alumni Association, Federal College of Education (Technical), Akoka, Yaba, Lagos. That as the .....of the Association, I will discharge my duties honestly to the best of my ability, faithfully in accordance with the Constitution of the Alumni Association, Federal College of Education (Technical), AkokaYaba, Lagos. That I will not allow my personal interest to influence my official conduct or my official decisions and that I will devote myself to the service and well-being of the members of the Alumni Association and for the upliftment of the Federal College of Education (Technical) AkokaYaba, Lagos. I promise to uphold, protect and defend the Constitution binding the Association. So help me God.

Elected Officer

Electoral Committee Chairman

-----  
Signature and Date

-----  
Signature and Date

The Lawyer

-----  
Signature and Date



## **ARTICLE 10**

### **SECTION 1**

#### **Amendment and Adoption of the Constitution**

S/s(1)

This Constitution is hereby adopted by the Association at its Annual General Meeting and shall become operational from that day.

S/s(2)

The Constitution shall be amended only by a resolution of 2/3 majority of full financial members present and voting at an Annual General Meeting and such amendment shall become operative immediately, provided a quorum was formed before the amendment.

S/s(3)

A written notice to amend this Constitution shall be given by the National General Secretary at least twenty-one (21) days before the date of the Annual General Meeting at which such motion is to be moved for the amendment of the Constitution.

S/s (4)

The process for the amendment of this constitution shall begin from the National Executive Council where a committee shall be set up for that purpose. The committee's report shall be adopted by The National Executive Council.

S/s(5)

The adopted version of the amended constitution shall be presented at the Annual General Meeting for ratification by two-thirds (2/3) majority of full financial members present and voting shall be done, provided there was a quorum. The mode of voting shall be physical and/or Electronic.

Dated this day....., of....., 2022.

-----  
**Hezekiah Abiodun Adesuyi (PhD)**  
National President

-----  
**Adeonipekun Adeyemo**  
National General Secretary

## CONSTITUTION REVIEW COMMITTEE MEMBERS

**1. Alhaji Abdulkadir SULEIMAN ----Chairman**

**+2348033138620**

[Suleimanabdulkadir@yahoo.co.uk](mailto:Suleimanabdulkadir@yahoo.co.uk)

**2. Professor Samuel AKINSEINDE**

**+2348037266973**

[seinde55@gmail.com](mailto:seinde55@gmail.com)

**3. Prince Tunde ADEBUSUYI**

**+442086577622**

[tundeadebusuyi@yahoo.co.uk](mailto:tundeadebusuyi@yahoo.co.uk)

**4. Mr Lawrence DARIA**

**+14439040453**

[labaamd@gmail.com](mailto:labaamd@gmail.com)

**5. Alhaji Alaba OLALEKAN**

**+2348023070794**

[gbebikanolalekansept@yahoo.com](mailto:gbebikanolalekansept@yahoo.com)

**6. Dr Lateef ODEKUNLE**

**+2348033161531**

[latiodekunle@yahoo.com](mailto:latiodekunle@yahoo.com)

**7. Barrister Oluwaseun AROMOLARAN**

**+2348032446285**

[samuelbarkingson@gmail.com](mailto:samuelbarkingson@gmail.com)

**8. Barrister Stella DIKE**

**+2347062996878**

[stella\\_dike@yahoo.com](mailto:stella_dike@yahoo.com)

**9. Mrs Nancy NWOSU**

**+2348023373879**

[ennwosu@yahoo.com](mailto:ennwosu@yahoo.com)

**10. Builder Segun SALISU**

**+2348098904051**

[salisusegzy@gmail.com](mailto:salisusegzy@gmail.com)

**11. Oluwaseunarafunmi ROTOWA (Secretary).**

**+2348060307070**

[seunrotowa@gmail.com](mailto:seunrotowa@gmail.com)

**[fcetalconstrev2021@gmail.com](mailto:fcetalconstrev2021@gmail.com)**

# THE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION



F.C.E (T) AKOKA

**THE CONSTITUTION  
(AS AMENDED)**